INFORMATION SYSTEMS SUB (FINANCE) COMMITTEE

Tuesday, 2 October 2012

Minutes of the meeting of the Information Systems Sub (Finance) Committee held at Guildhall, EC2 on Tuesday, 2 October 2012 at 11.30am

Present

Members:

Roger Chadwick (Chairman)
Ray Catt (Deputy Chairman)
Deputy Douglas Barrow
Nigel Challis
John Chapman
Deputy Pauline Halliday
Hugh Morris
Sylvia Moys
Chris Punter
Matthew Richardson
John Tomlinson

Officers:

Susan Attard - Deputy Town Clerk

Claire Sherer - Town Clerk's Department
Daniel Hooper - Town Clerk's Department

Chris Bilsland - Chamberlain

Graham Bell - Chief Information Officer
Colin Ashcroft - Chamberlain's Department
Neil Hocking - Chamberlain's Department
Ellen Murphy - Chamberlain's Department
John Saberi - Chamberlain's Department

Part 1 - Public Agenda

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Jeremy Mayhew.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS

There were no declarations.

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED: That the minutes be approved as an accurate record, subject to those Members of the Sub Committee who were attending in advance of their formal appointment by the Finance Committee being marked as 'In attendance'.

MATTERS ARISING:

In response to a question, Members were advised that expressions of interest in serving on the Information Systems Sub Committee would be extended to all Members of the Court of Common Council in advance of the April 2013 Finance Committee meeting to ensure that the Sub Committee would have a full complement of Members should the Finance Committee not wish to fill all the vacancies.

4. IS STRATEGY 2012 - 2015

The Chief Information Officer set out the draft high-level IS Strategy and informed the Sub Committee that this would be developed in more detail over the coming weeks. Members were supportive of the general approach and governance arrangements but were keen for it to include a statement of direction on technologies and some operational detail about how the Strategy would be implemented.

RESOLVED: That the Chief Information Officer would submit the final IS Strategy to the Sub Committee meeting on 19 February 2013.

5. IS REVIEW (SOURCING OPTIONS) PROGRESS REPORT

The Sub Committee considered progress on the IS Review (Sourcing Options) and were advised that soft market testing had been completed.

It was noted by Members that this was an excellent initiative and all staff involved should be thanked.

To ensure that the OJEU process was approached in as simple as way as possible, Members requested that the Chief Information Officer maintain personal oversight of the process. In response to the Sub Committee's request to be kept involved in the tendering process, it was agreed that a meeting would be held at 10.30am on 5 November 2012.

RECEIVED

6. PROGRESS REPORT ON KEY PROJECTS

Members considered the update report and although the format was good, they noted a number of concerns relating to the content. In particular, they requested a revision of the report to include:

- an indication of corporate priorities
- a full definition for the 'white' RAG status
- update information on all points currently indicated by 'TBC'
- clarity on the timescales for completion (and reasons for any delay)

With regards to the City's website, the Deputy Town Clerk advised Members that Officers were working hard to resolve the workflow issue relating to updating website content. The website was deliberately not marketed, and although the number of visitors had decreased, an initial survey had indicated a high level of satisfaction - Members would be updated on this matter in due course. Members noted that Officers should ensure that the 'Visit the City'

android and iPhone app remains compatible with the most up-to-date operating systems.

By way of explaining the delay in the project to replace the City Corporation's property management system (Manhattan), the Chamberlain advised that this had been a deliberate decision whilst scoping work was done to see if there is any merit in assessing Manhattan and the financial management system (Oracle) in tandem to see if further efficiencies could be made. It was noted that this area should be marked as 'Amber' due to the inherent risks and a full update would be included in the revised report.

RESOLVED: That the report be revised and reissued to Members by 31 October 2012.

7. COMMITTEE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM UPDATE REPORT

The Sub Committee considered an update report in respect of on-going implementation and use of the new committee management system (Modern.gov) including on-going implementation issues and future activities for enhanced use of the software.

Members noted that the system had supported more efficient working practices within the Committee & Member Services team when preparing and publishing Committee papers but were keen for the benefits to Members and the public to be fully realised. In particular, they were disappointed that the 'app' which would allow Members to access non-public papers via their iPads (rather than via the Intranet as currently available) was not likely to be available until early 2013 and that the calendar synchronisation had been slightly delayed due to some technical issues. Members were keen to be involved in the calendar synchronisation testing stage which would be progressed as a matter of priority.

Members also noted some difficulty in navigating separate PDF document packs on their iPads where papers were issued late. The Chairman noted that the new version of 'PDF expert' had introduced tabs at the bottom of the screen which aided navigation significantly and offered to assist Members in upgrading and using this software.

The Deputy Town Clerk noted Members concerns and advised that as a result of the iPad trial we were pressing Modern.gov to drive forward the development of the app allowing access to non-public papers as a matter of priority. In the meantime, PDF document packs would be circulated by email and Officers would continue to liaise with Modern.Gov to ensure that progress was made on these areas.

With regards to longer-term ambitions to reduce printing costs, one Member stated that there were options to reduce printing by not circulating a separate agenda and removing blank pages. The Deputy Town Clerk advised the Sub Committee that circulating separate agendas was in line with the agreed approach but that the distribution of hard copy papers could be tailored to each Member's needs on request. It was agreed that this issue would be looked into in more detail and Members would be updated in due course.

Members voted to receive the Sub Committee papers in soft copy only (currently to be provided as PDF document packs via email) for future meetings subject to providing iPad chargers in the Members' room and/or Committee rooms.

RESOLVED: That -

- i. the report be received and its contents noted;
- subject to providing iPad chargers in the Members' room and/or Committee rooms, papers would be circulated in soft copy only for future meetings;
- iii. the Sub Committee would be updated in all areas raised above as soon as possible; and
- iv. the calendar synchronisation would be resolved as a matter of priority and Information Systems Sub Committee Members would be offered the opportunity to participate in the testing stage.

8. IPAD UPDATE

The Sub Committee considered a report detailing the iPad project progress to date.

Members asked when they would get confirmation that they could upgrade to iOS6 and were advised that they could do this now but they may prefer to wait for a briefing note explaining any issues that would be issued shortly.

One Member noted that the iPad guidance cards that had been circulated to Members had been very well received.

RECEIVED

9. QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

One Member requested that the policy regarding access to websites such as twitter, facebook and other social media sites in the Member's room be reviewed, particularly as these are increasingly used as a way of communicating with constituents.

The Chief Information Officer agreed to update Members on this by the end of the week.

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT There was no other business.

11. EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED - That under Section 100(A) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part I of the Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

Part 2 - Non-Public Agenda

12. NON-PUBLIC QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE COMMITTEE

There were no non-public questions.

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND WHICH THE COMMITTEE AGREE SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There was no other business.

The meeting ended at 12.45pm	
 Chairman	

Contact Officer: Claire Sherer

tel. no.: 020 7332 1971

claire.sherer@cityoflondon.gov.uk